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IN TI-IE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DlSTRlCT OF TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

m'ITTD STATES OF AMERICA 
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INDI CTMEN'T 

The Grand Jury Charges: 

INTRODUCTION 

At all times material herein: 

1.  The tlarakat al-Muqawamah al-lslamiyya is Arabic for "11e Isla~nic Resistance 

Movement" and is known by the acronym H A M S .  HAMAS: which is sometilnes 

rererred to by its followers as "The Movement," is a terrorist organization based in the 

West Bank and Gaza Strip (Gaza). HAMAS was founded in 1987 by Sheikh .4hmed 

Yassin as an outgrolvth of the Palestinian branch of the Musli~n Brotherhood. The 

Muslirn Brotllerhood is an international Isla~nic organization founded in Egypt in 1928 
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and is collllnitted to the globalization of Islam through social engineering and violent 

jihad (holy war). H.4hV.S' published charter states that W M A S '  purpose is to create an 

Islamic Palestinian state throughout lsrael by eliminating the State of lsrael through 

violen1 jiltad. 

2. HAh4AS acllieves its goals through a militant wing. known as the Izz el-Din al- 

Qassam Brigades, and a social wing, linown as Dawn ("preaching" or "calling"). 

Although these two componenls have separate responsibilities, the organization operates 

seamlessly: with each colnponenr worldng to achieve the overall objectives ofthe terroris1 

group. 
L 

3. H A W S '  n ~ i l i t q l  wing is responsible [or camling out suicide bombings and 

other terrorist atyacks within lsrael. the West Bank and Gaza. These attacks have targeted 

civilians and have resulted in the death and injury of hundreds of indi\~iduals. including 

American citizens. HAh4AS' social wing operates as a social welfare agency. providing 

food. n~edical care and education to Palestinians in order to generate loyalty and support 

for the organization and its overall goals. HAMAS supporn religious and academic 

institutions that Sacilitate the teacllings of HAMAS and introduce its radical and violent 

ideology at the earliest stages of spiritual and educational development. This social 

engineering is critical to winning the hearts and minds of the Palestinian people and to 

creating a militap and operational recruitment pool for HAMAS. Additionally, I-LAM4S 
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Yewards past terrorist acts, and provides incentive for future acrs, by financially 

subsidizing family members of HAMAS operatives \who are killed, injured or imprisoned. 

and ensuring that the families are revered in the community. 

4. H.4M.4S' social services are_ in large part, administered by local HAAUS 

affiliated zakat conunittees and other ostensibly charitable organizations. "Zaliat:" or 

"alms giving," is one of the pillars of Islam and is an act incumbenr on all practicing 

Muslims. The membership of these committees and organizations consists of H A W S  

me~nbers, operatives and activists. HAMAS' social intrastructure is supported by 

numerous financial sources located around the world, including individuals and entities in 

the United States. Additionally: due to HAMAS' substantial expenditures and the 

fungible nature of moneyl some of the money collected externally under humanitarian 

banners is routed to military and operational use, in addition to freeing up other funds for 

specific terrorist acts. Such uses include the provision of weapons, explosives, 

rransportation services, safehouses, and job salaries for operatives. 

-. 5 HAMAS' Political Bureau sits above the social and militan wings and servcs 

as the highest ranking leadership body in the HAMAS organization. The Political Bureau 

is responsible for setting policies and guidelines regarding K4MAS' activities, including 

directing and coordinating terrorist acts. By design, several lugh-ranking members of the 

political bureau, such as Khalid Mishal and Mousa Abu Marzook, have resided outside 

the West Bank and Gaza, and lived in such places as Jordan, Syria and the United States. 
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6. The International Emergenc)~ Economic Powers Act (IEEPA) confers upon the 

President the aurhority to deal with threats to the national security or foreign policy of the 

United States. On Januan, 23. 1995. pursuant to this authority. the President issued 

Esecutive Order 12947. which declared a national emergency resulting from tlie grave 

acts of violence colnmided by foreign terrorists designed to disrupt tlie Middle East Peace 

Process. The Executive Order prollihits transactions. including financial ti-ansactions, 

\vith organizations and individuals nalned in tlle Annes to the Order or organizations and 

individuals declared to he Specially Designated Terrorists by the United States 

Department of Treasury pursuant to the criteria articulated in the Order. The Executive 

Order authorizes the Depafinent of Treasun to block all property subject to United States 

jurisdiction in which there is any interest held by any organization or individual declared 

to be a Specially Designated Terrorist. Any United States person or entity who possesses 

any funds in which any interest is held by a Specially Designated Terrorist, ]nust report 

such interest to the proper United States authorities. . b y  dealings in those funds after the 

designation date, or an)' attempt to avoid ackno\vledgment of the funds. is unlawful. 

7 .  To i~nplenient Esecutive Order 12947. tlie L'nited States Department of 

Treasury, tluough tlie Office of Foreign .4ssets Control, promulgated the Terrorism 

Sanctions Regulations, which are detailed at Title 31: Code of Federal Regulations. 

Section 595. Esecutive Order 12947 and the Terrorism Sanctions Regulations prohibit, 

among other things: (a) transferring, paying. exporting, withdrawing or othenvise dealing 
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in property or interesrs in property of a Specially Designated Terrorist that are in the 

United States: come within the United States. or come within the possession of or control 

of United States persons; (b) providing funds, goods or sentices to a Specially Designated 

Terrorist; (c) any transaction for the purpose of. or which has the effect of. evading or 

avoiding: or which facilitates the evasion or avoidance ofthe Terrorism Sanctions 

Regulations: (d) any 'onspiracy formed for the purpose of engaging in a prohibited 

transaction. A ~villiul violation of any of these provisions is a criminal offense. 

8. On January 25, 1995. HAMAS was designated as a Specially Designated 

Terrorist by the President in the Annex to Executive Order 12947. On August 29: 1995, 

former HAMAS Political Bureau Chief and current Deputy Chief Mousa Abu Marzook 

was designated as a Specially Designated Terrorist. On August 22: 2003, current 

H.4MAS Political Bureau Chief Khalid Mishal was designated as a Specially Designated 

Global Terrorist pursuant to Executive Order 13224. Executive Order 13224 was issued 

on September 23: 2001: pursuant to IEEPA, and prohibits transactions with organizations 

and individuals who, inter alia, commit, threaten to cormnit, or support certain acts of 

terrorism. 

9. On October 5: 1997, by publicarion in the Federal Register, the United States 

Secretary of State designated HAMAS as a Foreign Terrorist Organization pursuant to 

Section 21 9 of the lrmnigration and Nationality Act (INK), as added by the Antiterrorism 

and Effective Death Penalty Act of 1996 (AEDPA). Pursuant to the AEDPA, the 
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Secretary of State may designate a group as a Foreign Terrorist Organization if the group 

is (1) a foreign organization; (2 j  the organization engages in terrorist activity as defined 

by the INA; and: ( 3 )  the terrorist activity of the group threatens the national security of 

the United Stares. The .4EDPA: and specifically 18 U.S.C. 2339B, reflects Congress' 

recognition of the danger and design orterrorist movements such as HAMAS and, as a 

result, it is unlaxvful to provide material support and resources. to include currency or 

monetary instmn~ents, financial services: persomel: transportation and otller provisions: 

to any component of HAMAS. 

10. The Muslim Brotherhood (HPSVLAS' parent organization) has maintained a 

presence in the United States since at least the early 1980s. During the times relevant to 

this Indictment, the Muslim Brotherhood in the United States had approximately ten to 

fifteen xvorking conunjttees: including a Palestinian Committee whose designed purpose 

was to support HAMAS. The Palestinian Conunittee had authority over several 

organizations, each with a specific purpose in its mandate to support HAMAS: such as 

propaganda, community relations and fundraising. 

1 1. In or around 1988. sl~ortly after the founding of IlAMAS, The Hoiy Land 

Foundation For Relief and Development (;'HLF") was created by Uie defendants 

Shukri Abu-Baker, Mohammad El-Mezain and Ghassan Elashi, to hlfill the 

fundraising component of the Palestinian Committee. From 1989 until 1992, the HLF 

was located in California and: until 1991. was known as the Occupied Land Fund 
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(hereinafter all references to the Occupied Land Fund \vill be as the HLF). In 1992; the 

HLF relocated to Richardson, Texas and became incorporated in Texas. The HLF 

represented itself to be a non-profit. tax exempt. charitable organization designed 

primarily to asslst needy individuals in the West Bank and Gaza. In addition to the main 

office in Richardson. Texas. the HLF maintained offices in New Jersey, California. 

Illinois. Jerusalem. the West Banlc and Gaza. and maintained a presence in other 

locations. such as Lebanon and Jordan. 

12. The Islamic Association for Palestine (1AP) was the propaganda organization 

of the Palesrinian Committee. It had offices in several cities througl~out the United 

States. including Dallas and Chicago. 

13. The defendant Shuliri Abu Baker was the President. Secretan) and Chlef 

Executive Officer of the HLF. The defendant Shuliri Abu Baker's brother is Jamal Abu 

Baker. a.k.a Jamal Issa. the former HAMAS leader in the Sudan and the current H M S  

leader in Yemen. 

14. The defendant Mohammad Ei-Mezain was the original Chairman orthe 

Board until in or about 1999. when he became Director of Endowments for the HLF. 

The defendant Mohammad El-Mezain is a cousin of HAMAS Deputy Political Chief 

and Specially Designated Terrorist Mousa Abu Marzoolc. 

15. The defendant Ghassan Elashi was the original Treasurer, and became the 

Chairn~an of the Board of the HLF in 1999. He was also an incorporator of the IAP. The 
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defendant Ghassan Elashi is related by marriage to HAMAS Deputy Political Bureau 

Chief and Specially Designated Terrorist Mousa Abu Marzook. 

16. The defendant Heitham Maghantri was the Executi\ie Director of the HLF. 

17. n ~ e  defendant Alcram Mishal uras the Project and Grants Director for the 

HLF. The defendant Akram Mishal is a cousin of HAhIAS Political Bureau Chief and 

Specially Designated Global Terrorist Khalid Mishal. 

1 S. The defendant Mufid Abdulqader \\?as a top fundraiser for the HLF. The 

defendant Mufid Abdulqader is the half-brother of HAh4AS Political Bureau Chief and 

Specially Des ipa~ed  Global Terrorist Khalid Mishal. 

19. n ~ e  defendant Abdulrahman Odeh was the New Jersey representative of the 

HLP. 

The HLF's Relationship with W 4 S  

20. During HAMAS' and the HLF's beginnings? and in furtherance of their 

designed objective, the HLF provided significant financial resources to I W S  leaders 

and key strategisrs. In April 1988: prior to its incorporation, the HLF sent approximately 

$100:000 to HAMAS' future Political Bureau Chief Mousa Abu Marzook and his 

associates. Additionally, from 1988 through 1989, the HLF wire transferred 

approximately $670,000 to an account held by the Islamic Center oEGaza, located in 

Gaza. The Islamic Center of Gaza was established by I W S  spiritual leader and 

founder Sheik b e d  Yassin, and was used by hinl to coordinate and conduct HAMAS 
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activities. During the time that the funds were being transferred to the lslanic Center of 

Gaza from the HLF, Sheik Yassin was arrested and convicted in Israeli court for the 

. . 
kidnapping and murder of an Israeli soldier. 

21. As previously described, the HLF was deeply involved with a net~vork of 

Muslim Brotherhood organizations dedicated to furthering the radical 1:iolent agenda 

espoused bll HAMAS. These organizations served in different capacities: sucll as 

propaganda d e ~ ~ l o p m e n t  and distribution, banking, and creating fundraising forums 

through \vhich the HLP raised money. 'The H L F  sponsored conventions, seminars, 

rallies and teleconferences in support of radical Islamic causes, including HAM4S. At 

these conventions, seminars: rallies and teleconferences: pro-HAMAS sheiks, Muslim 

Brotherhood members and HAMAS officials from overseas were employed to inflame the 

audience and enhance fundraising. The HLF paid for the ravel to the United States of 

several of thesc spcakers and I-IAMAS officials; including current I - W S  leader 

Mahmoud Zahar and fonner W S  spokesperson Janlil F-lammami. 4 t  these events. 

participants. including the defendant Mufid Abdulqader, praised HAM.4S through 

speeches. songs and violent dramatic skits depicting the killing of Jewish people. 

22. In October 1993, in response to a United States sponsored Middle East peace 

initiative between the Israeli g o v e m e n t  and the Palestinian Liberation Organization, 

known as the Oslo Accords, and other significant events, the principals orthe HLF ]net 

with other members of the United States based Palestinian Committee in Philadelphia. 
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Pennsylvania. The purpose of the meeting was to  determine their course of action in 

suppon of HAMAS' opposition ro the peace plan and to decide how to conceal their 

activities from the scrutiny of the United States Government. As noted in prior 

paragraphs, HAM4S is opposed to any peaceful solution to the Palestinian territorial 

conflict, as such a propositioll is at odds with I~AMAS'  goal of annihilating the State of 

Israel and establislling an Islamic state in all of historic Palestine. During the meeting, 

the defendants Shultri Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi and Haitham Maghawri, and others 

]cllo\v~? and unknown to the Grand Jury: expressed their support for "The Movement," (as 

previously stated, a term known to refer to HAMAS, whose full name is the Islamic 

Resistance Movement) and affirmed that the United States should be used as a 

fundraising platform to further "The Movement's" goals. The attendees aclnowledged 

the need to avoid scrutiny by law enforcement officials in the United States by 

masquerading their operations under the cloak of charitable exercise. To that end, the 

attendees discussed the need to conceal their true motives and objectives by giving 

nominal amounts to other non-Palestinian charities. The defendant Shukri Abu Baker 

reflected this understanding when he stated: "In the past we gave the lslamists 5100,000 

and we gave the others $5:000." The attendees noted the danger of attracting the terrorist 

perception, which would undoubtedly colnprolnise their efforts in supporting the violeni 

jil~ad. 
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23. In 1994: a dispute arose between the HLF and another W U S  fundraising 

entiiy in the United States. Then HAMAS Political Chief Mousa Abu Marzook resol\~ed 

the dispute and determined that the H L F  would be the primary fund-raising organization 

for HAMAS in the United States. 

24. The HLF supported HAMAS by subsidizing HAMAS' vital recruitment and 

re\vard efforts in the West Bank and Gaza. Although lhis financial initiative was spread 

broadly across the Palestinian population in order to promote HAhL4S' appeal tluoughout 

the entire Palestinian community, those directly involved in furthering HAMAS' agenda 

were treated more favorably. In 1992, the Government of Israel deported over 400 

members of HAMAS and other Islamic terrorist organizations to southern Lebanon in 

response to a surge in violence by HAMAS militants against Israeli soldiers? police and 

ci\:ilians. The HLF provided financial assistance to the deportees, and publically lauded 

itself for its response to the deportation. Deceased HAMAS leader Sheik Abdel Rantisi 

was one of the deportees whose family received financial assistance from the HLF. 

25. In furtherance of HAMAS' goal of garnering the support of the Palestinian 

people, the HLF sponsored orphans and needy families in t l~e  W-est Bank and Gaza. 

While the program was mantled with a benevolent appearance, the HLF specifically 

sought orphans and families whose relatives had died or were jailed as a result of 

furthering HAMAS' violent campaign, including suicide bombings. l h i s  type of support 
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was critical to HAMAS' efforts to win the hearts and minds of the Palestinian people and 

to create an infrastructure solidifying HAMAS' presence. 
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COUNT ONE 

Conspiracy to Provide Material Support to a Foreign Terrorist Organization - 
( 1  X U.S.C. 8 2339B(a)(l)) 

1 .  Paragraphs one (1) through hventy-five (25) of the Introduction to this 

Indictment are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference as  though fully set forth 

herein. 

2. Beginning from on or about October 8: 1997, and continuing until the date of 

the Indictment, in the Dallas Division of the Northern District of Texas and elsewhere, 

the defendants Holy Land Foundation for Relief and Development (HLF), Shnkri 

Abu Baker, Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram 

Mishal: Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh, and others known and unlcnown 

to the Grand J q r :  lno\vingly conspired to provide material suppori and resources, as 

those terms are defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2339A(b): to wit, 

currency and monetary instruments. to HAMAS. a des~gnated Foreign Terror~st 

Organizat~on. in violation of Title 18. United States Code. Section 2339B(a)(l). 

MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY 

3. The defendants HLF, Shulcri Abu Baker, Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassan 

Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman 

Odeh provided material support and resources to the designated Foreign Terrorist 

Organizarion WMAS by raising funds in the United States and sending those funds to 

organizations and programs in the West Bank and Gaza which operated on behalf of. or 
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under the control of. HAMAS. 

4. In furtherance of the conspiracy. the defendants HLF, Shulrri .4bu Balter, 

Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, AItram Mishal, Mufid 

Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh. participated in fundraising events at various 

forums, including conventions: services at mosques, seminars and other progranls. The 

HLF sponsored speakers at these events whose ~llissioi~ was to raise hnds  for the HLF. 

Prior tn the designation of HAMAS E a Foreign Terrorist Organization, the speakers 

sponsored by the HLF often praised the efforts of HAMAS and its violent activities 

against Israel, and encouraged financial support for those effoits. After FAMAS' 

designation, upon instruction by the HLF, the speakers changed tactics by using 

inflaminaton language whicl~ was designed to support HAMAS and its violent activities 

without openly mentioning R4RMS. Some of the speakers sponsored by the HLF 

included founding HAMAS leaders, prominent M I A S  spokesmen and other speakers 

belonging to the Muslim Brotherhood. Ful-thermore, at some of the fund-raising events, 

the speakers, including the defendant Muiid Abdulqader, performed skits and songs 

which advocated the destruction of the State of Israel and glorified the liilling of Jewish 

people. 

5. In furtherance of the conspiracy, the defendants HLF, Shuliri ~ b u  Baker, 

Mohammad El-Mezain: Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Aliram Mishal, Mufid 

Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh provided financial support to the families of 
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I W S  "martyrs.'. detainees and activists knowing and intending that such assistance 

would support KAMAS' terrorist infrastructure. In screening potential aid recipients and 

in providing funds, the defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Baker, Mohammad El-Mezain, 

Ghassan Elashi, Hai than~ Maghawri. Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and 

Abdulrahman Odeh distinguished behveen needy Palestinian families generally, and 

those Palestinian families \vho had a relative "martyred" or jailed as a result of terrorist 

activities. In some cases: the defendants specifically targeted families for financial aid 

who were related to known HAMAS terrorists who had been killed or jailed by the 

Israelis. In this manner, the dcfendants effectively rewarded past, and encouraged future, 

suicide bo~nbings and terrorist activities on behalf of HAMAS. 

6. In furtllerance of the conspiracy, and in order to conceal the existence of the 

conspiracy, the defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Baker, Mohammad El-Mezain, 

Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri,  Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and 

Abdulrahman Odeh, took several steps wllich were inconsistent with the activities of a 

legitimate charity. The defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Baker, Mohammad El-Mezain, 

Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri,  Akram Mtshal, Mufid Abdulqader and 

Abdulrahman Odeh in following counter-surveillance measures outlined in a manual 

they possessed entitled "The Foundation's Policies and Procedures," did the follo~ving: 

retained the services of a security company to search the prenuses of the H L F  for 

listening devices; directed the defendant Haitham Maghawri to take training on 
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advanced methods in ihe detection of wiretaps; shredded documents; maintained 

incriminating documenrs at off-sire locarions, including on the premises of lnfoco~n: a 

related entit): of \vhich the defendant Ghassan Elashi was an officer and HAMAS leader 

Mousa Abu Marzook was a major investor: the defendants Shukri Abu Baker and 

A h a m  Mishal traveled overseas \vhile falsely posing as Infocom employees; and in 

conversatio~ls behveen themselves and others, the defendanrs HLF, Shukri Abu Baker, 

Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, 

Mufid .4bdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh often spolte in code in order to conceal the 

true nature of their conversation. 

7. In order to provide the HLF with a cloak of legitimacy and to conceal its 

relationship to HAMAS, the defendant Shulcri Ahu Balier discussed with the defendant 

Ghassau Eiashi the need to provide minimal support to legitimate charitable causes. In 

furtherance of the conspiracy, and in order to conceal the existence of t l ~ e  conspiracy. the 

defendan~s HLF, Shukri Abu Balier, Mohammad El-Mezaiu, Ghassan Elashi, 

Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid Ahdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh 

carried our this plan, while providing a substantial amount of their financial assistance to 

organizations and progranls, which operated on behalf of: or under the control of. 

HAMAS, and to families of HAMAS "martyrs" and detainees. 

8. In furtherance of the conspiracy: the defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Balter, 

Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassau Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid 
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Abdulqader and Abdulrahnlan Odeh maintained information on the arrest and 

prosecution of I-L4bIAS activists in Israel, the West Bank and Gaza. including individuals 

who \\?ere members of the zakat commiaees to which the HLF sent money. 

9. In furtherance of the conspiracy. the defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Baker, 

Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassan EIashi: Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid 

Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh wire transferred and caused to be wire transferred 

money from the HLF bank accounts in the Northern District of Tesas, to zaltat 

committees located in the West Bank and Gaza which were acting on behalf of. or under 

the control of. H M S .  

10. In furtherance of the conspiracy: the- defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Baker, 

Mohammad El-Mezain, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram hlishal, Mufid 

Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh wire transferred mane)' from the HLF banli 

accounts in the Northern District of Texas: ro the HLF offices in the West Bank and Gaza 

for further distribution to zakat located in the West Bank and Gaza which 

were acting on behalf of. or under the control of. HAMAS, as well as for direct payment 

to individuals whom the HLF supported on behalf of HAMAS, including the family 

members of "martyrs" and prisoners. 

OVERT ACTS (1) - (8 )  

1 I .  In furtherance of the conspiracy and to acconlplish its purposes, on or about 

the dates listed belo\\!, the defendants HLF, Shulcri Abu Balier, Mohammad El- 
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Mezain, Ghassan Elashi, Haithanl Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Rlufid Abdulqader 

and Abdulrahman Odeh committed the foIlo\ving overt acts by issuing and causing to be 

issued wire transrers in the amounts indicated to be sent from the HLF bank accounts in 

the Northern District of Texas to the follo\ving organizations. which operated on behalf 

of. or under the control of. HAMAS: 

Ova? Act Anounr Oreanizaiion 

! I 1 1/7/97 $9,691 Qalqilia Zakat Cornminee 

(2) 112619s $95,000 Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

(3) 3127198 $7,2 18 Tolkarem Zakat Committee 

(4) 3127198 $11,773 Nablus Zakat Committee 

(5) 111 2199 $50.000 Isla~nic Charity Society of Hebron 

( 6 )  7/8/99 S5:306 Tolkarem Zakat Committee 

(7) 411 1100 $12,604 Ralnallah Zakat Committee 

(8) 6/14/01 $40.586 Jenin Zakat Conunittee 

OVERT ACTS (9) - ( 14) 

12. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish its purposes, on or about 

the dates listed below, the defendants HLF, Shulcri Abu Baker, Mobammad El- 

Mezain, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader 

and Abduirahman Odeh committed the following overt acts by issuing and causing to be 

issued wire transfers in the amounts indicared to be sent from the KLF bank accounts in 
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the Northern District of Texas to the HLF offices in the west Bank and Gaza, which 

were then further distributed to zakat committees and to family members of indi\~iduals 

~ 1 1 0  \$'ere either "martyred" or jailed for terrorist related activities: 

Overt Acr Date Amount 

(9) I 1/24/98 $47:376 

(10) 1212 1 I99 $1 17:506 

(11) 11120100 ~200,000 

(12) 12/7/00 $220,660 

(13) 3/8/01 $374>755 

(.I41 611 1/01 $192,403 

In violation of Title 18. United States Code, Section 2?39B(a)(l) 

Superseding Indictment - Page 19 -19- 



Case 3:04-cr-00240-P Document 1243 Filed 11/12/2008 Page 20 of 40 

COUNTS TWO THROUGI-I TEN 

Providing Material Support to a Foreign Terrorist Organization - 
( I8  U.S.C. 5 2339B(a)(l)) 

1. Paragraphs one (1) through txventy-five (25) of the Introduction to this 

Indictment and paragraphs three (3) through ten (10) of Count One are hereby re-alleged 

and incorporated by reference as though full>r set forth herein. 

2. On or about tile dates set forth beloar. for each count below. in the Dallas 

Division of the Northern District of Texas and elsewhere. the defendants HLF, Shukri 

Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri and Akram Mishai aided and 

abetted by each other and others lcno\xq~ and unlao\nl to the Grand Jury. did knowingly 

provide and attempt to provide material support and resources. as tllose tenns are defined 

in Title 18, United States Code. Section 2339A(b). to \%,it. currency and monetary 

instruments. to HAMAS. a designated Foreign Terrorist Organization. hy issuing and 

causing to be issued wire transfers in the amounts indicated. Corn the defendant HLF 

bank accounts in the Northern District of Texas. to the following organizations. which 

operated on behalf of. or under the control o< HAMAS: 

Count Amount Oroanization 

? 81 1 819 6 $1 1.962 Ramallah Zaltat Cormnittee 

3 8111198 $24.2 I 1 Islamic Charity Societ). of I-Iebron 

4 12131198 $8,389 Jenin Zakat Conllnittee 

5 512 1199 $12.115 Ramallah Zalrat Committee 
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6 1011 3199 525,000 Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

7 12110/99 $10.152 Jenin Zakat Cormnittee 

8 411 1100 $10.711 Nablus Zakat Conunittee 

9 411 1 100 $7:4 17 Qalqiiia Zakat Corn~nittee 

10  1117101 $1 6,674 Nablus Zakat Committee 

In violation of Title 16. United States Code. Sections 1339R(a)(1) and 2 
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COUNT ELEVEN 

Conspiracy to Provide Funds, Goods and Seniices to a Specially Designated Terrorist - 
(50 U.S.C. 5 5  1701-1706) 

I .  Paragraphs one ( I  ) through tweny-five (25) of the Introduction to this 

Indict~nent and three (3) through ten (10) of Count One are hereby re-alleged and 

incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

2. Beginning Prom on or about January 25, 1995; and continuing until the date of 

thc Indictment. in the Dallas Division of the Nortl~em District of Texas and elsewhere, 

the defendants HLF, Shultri Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, 

Aliram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh, and others known and 

unknown to the Grand 1w-y; h~owingly and ~villfully conspired, confederated and agreed 

to violate. Executive Order 12945, by contributilig funds- goods and sentices to, and for 

the benefit of: a Specially Designated Terrorist, namely HAMAS: in violation of Title 50, 

United Stales Code, Sections 1701 through 1706, and Title 31. Code of Federal 

Regulations. Section 595.201 et. seq. 

MANNER AND LEANS OF TIlE CONSPIRACY 

3. In furtherance ofthe conspiracy: on or about January 25, 1995: and continuing 

until the date of this indictment, the defendants HLF, Shultri Abu Balter? Ghassan 

Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akrarn Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman 

Odeh made regular monetary payments to zakat committees and individuals located in 

the West Bank and Gaza who were acting on behalf of, or under the control of. a 

Superseding Indictment - Page 22 



Case 3:04-cr-00240-P Document 1243 Filed 11112/2008 Page 23 of 40 

Specially Designated Terrorist, namely HAMAS. 

OVERT ACTS 

4. In hrtherance ofthe conspiracy, and in order to accomplish its purposes, on or 

about the dates listed below, the defendants HLF, Stiukri Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi, 

Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh 

committed the following overt acts by contributing funds, goods and services to, or for 

tlie benefit of. a Specially Designated Terrorist, namely HAMAS, to wit: by issuing and 

causing to be issued wire transfers in t l~e amounts indicated from the HLF bank accounts 

in the Northern District of Tesas, to the follo\ving organizations, which operated on 

behalf of, or under the control of. HAMAS: 

Overt Act Date Amount Oreanization 

i l )  4i3l95 $30,000 Islamic Charity Society of I-lebron 

(2) 4/32/96 $9,758 Islamic Science & Culture Com. 

(3) 11/20/96 $8;434 lslamic Charity Society of Hebron 

(4) 8/5/97 $34,563 Ramallal~ Zakat Committee 

( 5 )  1 1/7/97 $10,690 Nablus Zaliat Committee 

(6) 3/27/98 $12,179 Qalqilia Zakat Committee 

(7) 4/3/98 $24,173 Jenin Zaltat Co~mnittee 

(8) 6/26/98 $75,000 Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

(9) 1/20/99 $10,100 Ramallah Zakat Committee 
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(10) 2/16/99 $20.000 Islamic Charit! Society of Hebron 

(1  1) 3/3/99 $38.385 Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

(12) 3 2/14/99 $17.996 Ramallah Zakat Conmittee 

(131 6i3199 $8.406 Jenin Zakat Committee 

(14) 1117101 $1 1.450 Tolkarem Zakat Conminee 

In violation of Title 50. United States Codc. Sections 1701 througll 1706 and Title 
3 1. Code of Federal Regulations: Section 595.20 1 et.  seq. 
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COUNTS TWELVE THROUGH TWENTY-ONT 

Providing Funds, Goods and Senrices to a Specially Designated Terrorist - 
(50 U.S.C. 5 5  1701-1706) 

1. Paragraphs one (1) tluough twenty-five (25) of the Introduction to this 

Indictment; paragraphs three (3) through ten ( I  0 j  of Count One; and paragraph three (3j 

of Count Eleven are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set 

forth herein. 

7. On or about the dates listed below. for each count below. in the Dallas Division 

of the Northern Districl of Tesas and elsebvhere. the defendants HLF, Shukri Abu 

Baker, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri and Aliram Mishal, aided and abetted by 

each other and others known and unkno\vn to the Grand Jury, willfully contributed funds. 

ooods and sentices to, or for the benefit of, a Specially Designated Terrorist. namely - 
HAblAS. by issuing and causing to be issued wire transfers in the amounts indicated. 

from the HLF bank accounts in the Northern Diszrict of Texas. to the following 

organizations. which operated on behalf of. or under the control of. HAMAS: 

Count &I& ,4mount Organization 

12 10120198 $12:342 Ramallah Zakat Committee 

13 3 213 3/98 $50,000 Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

14 12/31/98 $11.138 Nablus Zakat Committee 

15 6/3/99 $8;408 Jenin Zakat Committee 

16 9/23/99 $12.308 Ramallah Zakat Conunittee 
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Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

Tolkarem Zaliat Colnmittee 

Nablus Zaka~ Committee 

Qalqilia Zakat Committee 

Qalqilia Zakat Conlmittee 

In violation of Title 50: United States Code, Sections 1701 through 1706; 
Title 31, Code ofFederal Regulations, Section 595.201 et. seq.: and Title 18, United 
States Code, Section 2. 
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COUh'T TWENTY-TWO 

Conspiracy to Co~nmit Money Laundering - 
(1 8 U.S.C. 5 1956(h)i 

1. Tlie allegations of paragraphs one (1) through hventy-five (25) of the 

Introduction ro this Indictment; paragraphs three (3) through ten (I 0) of Count One: and 

paragraph three (3) of Count Eleven are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference. 

as though fully set forth herein. 

2. Beginning from on or about January 25: 1995, and continuing until the date of 

the Indictn~ent, in the Dallas Division of the Northern District of Texas and elsewhere, 

the defendants HLF, Shukri  Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi? Haitham Maghawri, 

Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman 0 d e h  and others known and 

unlmown to the Grand Sun!: in offenses involving interstate and foreign comnlerce. 

transmitred and transferred, and attempted to transmit and transfer, funds from a place 

within the United States, namely the Northern District of Texas, to places outside the 

United States, including the West Bank and Gaza, with the intent to promote the canying 

on of a specified unlawful activity: to wit: by contributing funds: goods and sentices to, or 

for the benefit of, a Specially Designated Terrorist, namely EIAMAS, in violation of Title 

50, United States Code, Sections 1701 through 1706 (IEEPA): and punishable under 

Section 206 of EEPA (also linown as Title 50; United States Code, Section 1705(h)). 

3. In furtherance of the conspiracy, between lanuan? 25, 1995, through December 

4,2001: the defendants HLF, Shultri Abu Baker, Gbassan Elashi, Haitham 
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Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh transmitted 

and caused to be transmitted and transferred at least $12.400.000 to various organizations 

and programs. which operated on behalf of. or under the control of. fi4MAS. 

OVERT ACTS 

4. In furtherance of the conspirac). and in order to accomplish its purposes. on or 

about tl~e dates listed below. the defendants HLF, Shukri Abu Balter. Ghassan Elashi. 

Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh 

cornmined the following overt acts by contributing funds. goods and services to. or for 

the benefit of. a Specially Designated Terrorist. namely HAMAS. by issuing and causing 

to be issued wire t~ansfers in the amounts indicated fi-on] the HLF banli accounts in the 

Northem District of Texas. to the following organizations located within the West Bank 

and Gaza. which operated on behalf of. or under the control of. HAMAS: 

Overt Act 

(11 

(2:) 

(3 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

Amount 

S;30,000 

$9,758 

$8,434 

$34:563 

$10,690 

$12,179 

$24,173 

Orxinization 

lslamic Charity Society of Hebron 

lslamic Science & Culture Co~n. 

Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

Ramallah Zakat Committee . 

Nablus Zakat Committee 

Qalqilia Zakat Comnmittee 

Jenin Zakat Committee 
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(sj 6/26/98 $75,000 Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

(9:) 1120199 Sl0.100 Ramallah Zakat Committee 

(10) 3/3/99 $38,385 Islamic Cl~arity Society of Hebron 

(11) 121.1 4/99 S 17,996 Ramallah Zakat Cormnittee 

(12) 411 1100 $8.409 Jenin Zakat C,ommittee 

(13) 111 7101 $1 1,450 Tolkarem Zakat Committee 

In violation of Title 18: United States Code, Sectionl956(11). 
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COUNTS TWENTY-THIZEE THROUGH THIRTY-TWO 

Money Laundering - 
(18 U.S.C. 5 1956(a)(2)(Aj) 

1. The allegations of paragraphs one ( I ]  through twenty-five (25) of the 

Introducrion to this lndict~nenr; paragraphs three (3 )  through ten ( 10) of Count One; and 

paragraph three (3j of Count Eleven are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference 

as though fully set forth herein. 

7 .  On or about each of the dates set fort11 below: for each count below. in the 

Dallas Division of the Northern District of Texas and elsewhere, the defendants HLF, 

Shukri Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri and Akram Mishal, aided 

and abetted by each other and others known and unknown to the Grand JUT: in offenses 

involving interstate and foreign commerce. transmitted and transferred. and attempted to 

transmit and transfer, funds in the amounts indicated: from a place within the United 

States, namely the Northern District of Texas, to places outside the United States, 

including the West Bank and Gaza, with the intent to promote the carrying on of a 

specified unlawful activity: to wit, by willfully contributing funds, goods and services to, 

or for the benefit of. a Specially Designated Terrorist, namely I-+.MAS, in violation of 

Title 50: United States Code, Sections 1701 through 1706 (IEEPA), and punishable under 

Section 206 of IEEPA (also known as Title 50, United States Code, Section 1705jb)j: 
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Amount 

$12.342 

$50,000 

$11,138 

$8,408 

$12,308 

$36,066 

$8,049 

$12,570 

$1 0:494 

$6,225 

Oreanization 

Ramallall Zakat Committee 

Islamic Charity Society of Hebron 

Nahlus Zakat Committee 

Jenin Zakat Committee 

Ralnallah Zaliat Conlmittee 

Islamic Charity Society of llebron 

To1l;arem Zakat Committee 

Nablus Zakat Commitlee 

Qalqilia Zakat Committee 

Qalqilia Zakar Cormnitlee 

In violation of Title 18. United States Code: Sectionsl956(a)(2)(A) and 7. 

Superseding Indictment - Page 31 



Case 3:04-cr-00240-P Document 1243 Filed 1111212008 Page 32 of 40 

COUI\'T THIRTY-THREE 

Conspiracy to Impede and lmpair the lnternal Revenue Service. and 
to File False Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax - 

( I S  U.S.C. 9 371) 

I .  The allegations of paragraphs one (1  ) through t~venty-five (25) of the 

introduction to this Indictment; paragraphs three (3j through ten (10) of Count One; and 

paragraph three (3) of Count Eleven are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference 

as thougll fully set forth herein. 

2. Section 501(cj(3j of the Internal Revenue Code grants authorized charitable 

organizations tax exempt status: which exempts them from having to pay any income tax 

on the donations they receive. The organizations are required to file an annual 

infoni~ational return: Fonn 990: entitled "Return of Organization Esen~pt f?om Income 

Tax." with the Internal Revenue Senlice. In that form, the organization must report the 

amount of their donations and how those donations are distributed. ?he return is signed 

under the penalty of perju~y. 

3. hl September 1989, the defendant Ghassan Elashi filed an application with the 

Internal Revenue Senlice to obtain tax exempt starus for the HLF pursuant to Section 

501 (c)(3) of the Lnternal Revenue Code. Tax exempt status was conferred on the HLF in 
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4. In or around and behveen January 1990 and continuing until the date of the 

Indictment; in the Dallas Division of the Northern District of Texas and elsewhere, tlle 

defendants Shuliri Abu Baker and Gbassan Elashi. and others known and unknown to 

the Grand Juv.  did knowingly and willfully combine. conspire. confederate and agree 

together with themselves and others 

a. to defraud the United States of America and the Internal Revenue Senrice 

("IRS"). an agency thereof. by impeding. impairing. defeating and obstructing the 

lawful governmental functions of the LRS in the ascertainment. evaluation. 

assessment and collection of corporate income taxes. in violation of Title IS. 

United States Code. Section 37 1 : and 

b. ro willfully make and subscribe, and aid and assist in the preparation and 

presentation of. United States Returns of Organization Exempt from Income Tas, 

Foml 990. which were verified by written declarations that they were made under 

the penalties of perjury and \were filed with the IRS: which retums they did not 

believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the returns 

reported payments to Program Sentices when in fact the payments were going to 

HAMAS, in violation of Title 26: United States Code. Section 7206(1). 

MANNERS AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY 

5 In furtherance of the conspiracy, between 1992 and 2001, the HLF received 

over $57,000.000 in contributions: gifts and pants. 
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6. In furtherance of the conspiracy. between 1992 and 2001, the defendants 

Shukri Abu Baker and Ghassan Elashi reported approxi~nately S36:230,891 on Line 13 

of the HLF's "Returns of Organization Exempt from Income Tax"(Fom1 990). . . as 

payments ro Prosam Services: \vIlich the HLF ostensibly distributed as grants to various 

legitimate projects, including assistance to non-profit medicalldental clinics, orphanages, 

schools, refugee camps and comnunity centers overseas, when in fact the donations were 

distributed to individuals and programs associated with: and organizations operating on 

behalf of. or under the control of. HAMAS, a terrorist organization. 

OVERT ACTS 

7. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and in order to accomplish its purposes, on or 

about the dates listed below, the defendants Shukri Abu Balter and Ghassan Elashi 

co~nmitted the followin% overt acts by signing and filing the follo\ving false Returns of 

Organization Exempt from Income Tax, Form 990, with the Internal Revenue Service: 

Overt Act Date Filed 

(I! 1995 811 9/96 

(2) 1996 811 8/97 

(3) 1997 4/13/98 

(4) 1998 3111199 
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In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. 
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COUNTS THIRTY-FOLR THROUGH T'HTRTY-SIX 

Filing False Retun~s of Organization Exempt from Income Tar; - 
(26 U.S.C. 5 7206(1)) 

1 .  The allegations of paragraphs one (1) tluough twenty-five (25) of the 

Introduction to this Indictment: paragraphs tlvee (3) through ten (1 0) of Count One; 

paragraph three (3) of Count Eleven; and paragraphs two (2):  three i3), five (5) and sis 

(6) of Count Thirty-Three are hereby re-alleged and incorporated hy reference as though 

fully set forth herein 

2. On or about the dates specified below, in the Dallas Division of the Northern 

District of Texas and elsewhere. the defendants as listed below. did knowingly and 

willfully make and subscribe United States Returns of Organizations Exempt from 

Income Tax. Form 990. for the HLF. for the years listed below. which were verified by 

\\litten declara~ions that they were made under t t~e  penalties of perjury and were filed 

wit11 the lnternal Revenue Senrice. \vhich informational tax returns each defendant did not 

believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the returns reported 

payments to P r o r a n  Services on Line 13 of said returns, whereas each defendant then 

and there well lcnew and believed the payments wcre not used for program services as 

required by their 501(c)(3) status: 

Count - Year Date filed 

34 1998 311 1/99 

,, - 
33 1999 5/8/00 

Defendant 

Shukri Abu Baker 

Ghassan Elashi 
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3 6 2000 8/710 1 Ghassan Elashi 

In violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206!1). 
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FORFEITURE 

As a result of conunitting one or more of the money laundering or monetary 

transaction offenses in violation of 'Title 18, United States Code. Section 1956. alleged in 

Counts Twenty-Two through Thirty-T\vo ofthis indictment. the defendants, as listed 

below. shall forfeit to the United States of America. all property. real and personal. 

involved in the money laundering or monetaly transaction offenses, and all property 

traceable to such property. including but not limited to the following: 

Defendants HLF, Shultri Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi, Haithani Maghawri, 

Alcram Mishal, Mufid Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh shall forfeit at least 

$12,400.000 in United Stares currency. That sum represents a portion of the sum of 

monies sent from a place within the United States. namely the Northern District of Texas. 

to places outside the United States. including the West Bank and Gaza and other placcs. 

as well as monies that were destined for places outside the United States. with the intent 

to promote t l~e carrying on of a specified ulllawful activity. to wit. willfully contributing 

funds, goods and services to. or for the benefit of. a Specially Designated Terrorist, 

nanlely HAMAS, as set forth in Counts Eleven though Twenty-one: for which the 

defendants are jointly and severally liable. 

By virtue of the com~nission of one or more of the felony offenses cllarged in 

Counts Twenty-Two through Thirty-Two of this Indictment by the defendants HLF, 

Shukri Abu Baker, Ghassan Elashi, Haitham Maghawri, Akram Mishal, Mufid 
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Abdulqader and Abdulrahman Odeh, any and all interests which the defendants have in 

the above desa-;bed sums are vested in the United States and are hereby forfeited to the 

Uniled States pursuant to Title 18: United Stales Code, Section 982(a)(1). 

In the event that any property, real or personal, involved in the offenses and 

described in Counts Twenty-Six through Thirty-Eight of this Indictment, or any property 

traceable to such property: as a result of any act or omission of t11e defendants: 

(1) cannot be located upon exercise of due diligence; 

(2) has been transfened or sold to, or deposited with a third parly; 

(3) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the coun; 

(4) has been substantially diminished in value; or 

(5) has been co-mingled with other property which cannot be divided without 

difficulty; 
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it is thc intent of the United States, punuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 

YS2(b)(l) to seek forf?iture of any other property of sajd defendants up to ;he valuc of thc 

abovc property. 
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